














































| LOV BHATIA & ASSOCIATES 
, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD. 

Report on the standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Solarworld Energy Solutions 

Private Limited, which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit 

and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes to the standalone financial 

statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information of 

the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit 

and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

a) In the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2022: 

b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and 

c) In the case of cash flow statement, for the cash flows for the year ended on that date; 

d) And the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on Standalone Financial Statements. 

  

  

Office : C - 2/258, Janakpuri, New Delhi — 110058 (India) Mob. : 91- 99112 22665



Information other than the standalone financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in & and presentation of its report (herein after called as 

“Board Report") including annexures to Board Report but does not include the standalone financial 

statements and our auditor's report there on. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information or Board 

Report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

Board Report and in doing so, consider whether the Board Report is materially inconsistent with the 

Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in this 

other information or Board Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows 

of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 

accounting standards (AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 

Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concer and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends 

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether standalone financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

 



guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of 

the internal control. 

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 

financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the Company. 

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements representing the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
Scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
Safeguards. 

 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 

to the extent applicable. 

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) 

b) 

c) 

q) 

e) 

g) 

h) 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt 
with by this report are in agreement with books of account. 

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards (AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31% March 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31% 
March 2022 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B"” 

With respect to the matter included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the Act, 
company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the current year. Further in our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by 
section 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private 
limited company. 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: - 

The Company does not have any pending litigations, except as disclosed, if any, in Notes to 
Accounts on contingent liability to the standalone financial statement, which would impact its 
financial position. 

 



i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

ii, There has been no delay in transferring of amount, required to be transferred, if any, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company, 

lil. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than those as disclosed in notes to the accounts, if any, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entity(ies) 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than those as disclosed in notes to the accou nts, if any, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entity(ies) (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and 
(b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

iv. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the Year. Accordingly, Section 
123 of the Act are not applicable. 

For Lov Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

  

Firm Regn No.: 008472N ..> BAe 

fl Aar.yts Bolsa) is) 
Proprietor 

Membership No.: 084384 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 02-09-2022 
UDIN: ALeBguzar, Av WAZP$2-9¢



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 under our ‘Report on Other Legal 
Regulatory Requirements section in the Independent Auditor Report of even 
date on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
31 March 2022, we report that: - 

(i) 

(ii) 

In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of property, plant, and equipment, 

(B) The Company does not have intangible asset. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, these property, plant, 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(a) 

(b) 

and equipment have been physically verified by the Company management at 
reasonable intervals, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its 
assets and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records 
examined by us, company does not have any immovable asset. Accordingly, 
Clause i(c) Is not applicable. 

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant, and equipment 
(including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have 
been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31 March 
2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 
Therefore, the clause i(e) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable. 

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records 
examined by us, in respect of Inventories, physical verification has been carried 
out during the year by the management of the Company. In our opinion, the 
coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate. No discrepancies 
were noticed during such verification. 

According to the information and explanation given to us The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits of Rs 3 crore at any point of the time during the year, from banks or financial institution, on the basis of primary security of 
current assets. 
Based on the records examined by us in normal course of audit 
quarterly/periodical statements filed by the company with the Bank are in 
agreement with books of account, 

 



(iii) 
(a) During the year company has made investments, provided Loans or advances in 

the nature of loans or stood guarantees or provided security, unsecured to 
companies or other parties in respect of which: 

The company has provided Loans or advances in the nature of loans or given 
guarantees or security during the year as per details given below: 

    

  

  

  

  

IN INR 
Description Loans Advances | Guarantees | Security 

in the 

nature of 

Loans 

Aggregate amount of | 2,98,25,929 0 0 0 
loan/advances in the nature of 

loan/security/guarantee 
granted /issued during the 
year to  Subsidiaries/Joint 

venture/associates/related 
parties 

Other than subsidiaries/joint | 1,75,00,000 0 0 0 
venture/associates 

Balance outstanding as at 1,75,00,000 i) 0 0 
Balance Sheet Date in respect 
of loans and advances given 

during the year- other than 

subsidiary/Joint venture or 
associates 

In respect of subsidiaries/joint 2,60,55,000 0 0 0 
venture/associates               

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, investments made, guarantees given, security given and the terms and 
conditions of the grants of all loans and advances in the nature of loans etc are, 
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the loans granted or advances in the nature of loans, are payable on demand. As informed to us company has, during the year, wherever demanded, have received the payment 
of Loans and also interest wherever applicable. Having regard to the fact that 
company has wherever demanded, received repayment of Loans & interest, in our opinion repayments of principal amounts and receipt of interest are regular. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, none of the loans 
granted or advances in the nature of loans by the company, there is no overdue 

 



(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(vii) 

(viii) 

(ix) 

amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date, as the company has 
not demanded payments of such loans and advances. 

(e) None of the loans granted or advances in the nature of loans by the company 
have fallen due for payment during the year, if any, has been renewed or 
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the existing loans given to the same 
parties, 

(f) Above mentioned loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the 
company in clause iii (a) are with terms and conditions specified and are 
repayable on demand, 

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the 
company has complied with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
where applicable. 

In our opinion and asccording to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not accepted any deposits or amount deemed to be deposits from 
public during the year within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by company pursuant to 
companies (cost records and audit rules) as amended and prescribed by central 
government u/s 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, cost 
records have been made and maintained. 

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory 
dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable with the 
appropriate authorities, in all cases during the year. 

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our 
verification, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory 
dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, 
service tax, income tax, cess etc outstanding on 31 March 2022 for a period of 
more than 6 months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues as referred in sub clause(a) above, dues of provident fund, Employees State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), service tax, Cess that 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute except demand of Rs 220.06 lakhs raised by Dept of Trade & Taxes,(VAT), New Delhi in respect of FY 2016- 
17 against which company has gone into Appeal. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961, 

(a) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any interest due thereon to any lender, 

 



(x) 

(xi) 

(xii) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(a) 

(b) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution, other lender 
or any Government authority. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, prima facie there are 
no funds raised on short term basis which have been utilised during the year for 
long term purposes of the company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of 
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during 
the year. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under 
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and 
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed 
or reported during the year. The Management of the company has also not 
reported any case of fraud during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 
(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

During the year and up to the date of this report, no report under sub section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the Auditors in form ADT 
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government. 

As informed to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief, the company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not 
applicable, 

(xiii) As per the information and explanations received by us all transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 & 188 of Companies Act, where 
applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 



(xiv) The company is not covered by section 138 of the Companies Act ,2013, related to 
appointment of internal auditor of the company. Therefore, the company is not 
required to appoint internal auditor of the company. 

(xv) In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors, and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
company. 

(xvi) 

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 
1934. Accordingly, clause xvi(a) of the order is not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities during the year. Accordingly, clause xvi(b) of the order is not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
there are no core investment company within the Group (as per provisions of the 
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016), 

(xvil) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 
audit and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans, and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report Indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet 
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date 
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the provisions of section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to corporate social responsibility is not 
applicable. Hence reporting under clause 3 (xx) of the Order is not applicable. 

 



(xxi) The reporting under clause xxi is not applicable in respect of standalone financial 
statement of the company. Therefore, reporting under clause 3 (xxi) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

For Lov Bhatia & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn No. 008472N' 

bho cy Le B Lan ")8) 

Adarsh Bhatia ~~ ADS 

Proprietor 
Date: 02-09-2022 Membership No.: 084384 
UDIN: A2foguzoay, AV HA7P93 a5 

Place: New Delhi



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Solarworld 
Energy Solutions Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction 
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuing 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Interal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the 
companies act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and_ their operating 
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 

  

 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Oyer Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial contro! over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial 
statements, 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Lov Bhatia & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 008472N 

hort 

Adarsh Bhatia 
Proprietor 

Membership No.: 084384 

UDIN: 9 $eau20u ay HIP $7.96 
Place: New Delhi 

Date: 02-09-2022 

 



Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 
U15100DL2013PTC255455 

Regd. Office : S01, Padma Place, 86-Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 

  

  

  

  

                

    

  

  

alan i 31st March, 20 

(Amt. in Thousand INR) 
Note 

PARTICULARS 
No. As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

|. }EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

(1) |Shareholder's Fund 

(a) |Share Capital 
1 3,200.00 3,200.00 (b) |Share Premium 

13,200.00 13,200.00 {c) |Reserves & Surplus 
2 38,009.56 26,716.58 

(2) |Share application money Pending allotment 

(3) |Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) |Long Term Borrowings 
3 1,01,405.42 45,498.34 (b) |Deffered Tax Liabilities 

(c) [Other Long term liabilities 
(d) [Long-term provisions 

= 

(4) |Current Liabilities 

(a) |Short Term Borrowing 5 4,21,366.55 2,19,887.27 (b) | Trade Payables 

(i) |Qutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(ii) |Qutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises, 6 41,531.64 89,771.56 

(c) | Other Current Liabilities 
7 45,352.10 6,723,61 (d) |Short-term Provisions 
8 5,035.40 963,87 

TOTAL 6,69,100.67 4,05,961.23 

I. |ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 
(1)(a)| Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 

(I) |Property Plant & Equiqment 
9 4,334.46 8,330.95 (I) |intangible assets 

* - (ili) |Capital work-in-progress 
= (iv) |Intangible assets under development 
- - (b) |Non-current investments 

10 37,882.59 22,945.09 [c) |Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
4 626.75 363,51 (d) Long-term loans and advances 

= bg (e) |Cther Non Current Assets 11 18,90 

(2) |Current Assets 
(a) |Current Investments 

- - (b) |Trate Receivables 
12 106,870.11 84,719.51 (c) )Cash & Cash Equivalents 
13 1,29,074,23 8,037.23 (d) [Inventories 
14 15,233.36 20,333.98 (2) |Short Term Loan & Advances 
15 3,21,128.82 2,56,763.09 (f) [Other Current Assets 
16 53,950.34 4,448.97 

TOTAL — ——£,59,100.57 405,961 23 
Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes form an integral Part of these financial statements 25 
AS per our Report of even date attached, 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Lov Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountant ai hol © 
FRN : 0OB472N — 
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Adarsh Bhatia 

Rishabh Jain Teltia Proprietor : aee 
Director Director M..No. 084384 scoe 

DIN:05115384 DIN:06610105 UDIN: *4°2US 2H AVA se9, ack 
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Date : 02-09-2022 
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U15100DL2013PTC255455 
Regd. Office ; 501, Padma Place, 86-Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 

nt of Profi S for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(Amt. in Thousand INR) _ 
PARTICULARS Note For the year ended the year ende 

No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

| |Revenue from Operations 17 2,80,760.20 1,88,557.34 
ll |Other Income i8 29,761.10 22,997.35 
Il | Total Income (I+I1) 3,10,521.30 2,11,554.69 

IV |Expenses: 

Cost of materials consumed 2 . 
Purchases of Stock in Trade 1,31,563.55 80,796.74 
Changes in Inventories of FG, WIP and Stock-in-Trade 19 5,100.62 (1,207.26) 
Direct Expenses 20 84,087.72 70,622.29 
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 4,708.56 4,514.12 
Finance Cost 22 43,319.90 20,265.84 
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9 2,034.88 986.08 
Other Expenses 23 23,641.64 30,713.90 

Total Expenses (IV) 2,94,456.17 2,06,691.71 

V |Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III - IV) 16,065.13 4,362.98 
VI | Exceptional items 

- < 
VII | Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V- VI) 16,065.13 4,862.98 
VII | Extraordinary items 

= = 
IX [Profit before tax (VII- VIII) 16,065.13 4,862.98 

X |Tax Expenses: 

Provision for Tax 8 5,035.40 953.44 
Deferred Tax 4 (263.25) (456.96) 

X\_ | Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (1X-X) 11,292.98 4,366.50 
Xl | Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations 

: = Xill | Tax expense of discontinuing operations 
= 

XIV | Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (XT-XU1) - : 
XV | Profit (Loss) for the period (XI + XIV) 11,292.98 4,366.50 

Earnings per Equity Share : In INR 24 
(1) |Basic 

35.29 20.79 
(2) |Diluted 

35.29 20.79             

Summary of significant accounting policies & 

Notes on Accounts 
25 

Notes referred tu abuve form an integral part of accounts. 
As per our report of even date attached 
For Lov Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountant 

FRN : 008472N 

hd atthe Bhal 
Adarsh Bhatia 

Proprietor 

M. No. 084384 

UDIN: eau seuAUH@reezae 
Place : New Delhi 

Date : 02-09-2022 

       
Director 

DIN:05115384 

Address-R-13, Nehru 

Enclave,Kalkaji, 

New Delhi-110019 

  

Teltia 

Director 

DIN:06610105 
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

U15100DL2013PTC255455 
Regd. Office : 501, Padma Place, 86-Nehru Place, New Dethi-110019 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(Amt. in Thousand INR) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

        

aS ae As at March 31,2022 | As at March 31, 2021 
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 16,065.13 4,862.98 
Adjusted For; 

Depreciation 2,034.88 986.08 
Miscellaneous Expenses Written off 18.90 18.90 
Interest Expenses 43,319.20 20,265.84 
Interest Income & Foreign Exchange (25,244.04) (23,009.71) 
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 36,194.07 3,124.09 
Changes in Working Capital : 

Changes In Inventory 5,100.62 (1,207.26) 
Net Increase in Current Assets Except inventory Cash & Bank Balance (1,36,017.70) (6,881.31) 
Net Increase in Current Liability (9,611.43) (98,444.15) 
Cash Generated from Operating Activities (1,04,334,44) (1,03,408.63) 
Less: Tax Paid (963.87) (3,269.80) 
Less ; Extra Ordinary Items 

Net Cash flow From Operating Activities (1,05,298.31) (1,06,678.43) 

B | CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Fixed Assets 1,961.61 (102.64) 
Investment (14,937.50) (13,614.09) 
(Inc)/Dec in other non current Assets 

Interest Received 25,244.04 23,009.71 
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 12,268.15 9,292.98 

C |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
Issue of Equity Share Capital - 14,300.00 
Proceeds from Borrowing 2,57,386.36 1,05,679.80 
Payment of Interest (43,319.20) (20,265.84) 
Net Cash flow From Financial Activities 2,14,067.16 99,713.96 

Net Increase/Decrease in cash (A+B+C) 1,21,037.00 2,328.51 
Add: Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,037.23 5,708.72 
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,29,074.23 8,037.23 

Notes : 

1, The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in AS-3 
2. Figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary, 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Lov Bhatia & Associates _ 
Chartered Accountant S For and on behalf of the Board is 
FRN : 008472N 

Afacrh 
Adarsh Bhatia 
Proprietor 

M. No. 084384 
UDIN: SHeeu eH AU Kare tage 

Place : New Delhi 

Date : 02-09-2022 
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

NOTES ACCOMPANYING BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2027 AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

1 

11 

LZ 

(}) 

(ii) 

{iii) 

  

  

  

    

SHARE CAPITAL 

SHARE CAPITAL 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 
(Rs. In Thousand) — (Rs. In Thousand) 

Authorized Share Capital - 
10,090,000 (Prev. Yr. $00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,000.00 5,000.00 

issued Share Capital ; 
3,20,000 (Prev. Yr. 3,20,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,200.00 3,200.00 

Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital : 
3,20,000 (Prev. Yr, 3,20,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,200.00 3,200.00 

TOTAL 3,200.00 3,200.00       

Terms & Rights attached to equity shares 
The Company has only one ciass of Equity shares having aparvalue of 10/- 
The Company declares and pays dividends in indian rupees. The dividend 
approval of the shareholders 
in the event of liquidation 

company, after settlement of all liabilities and distribution of all 
of pouity shares held hy the tharehnidere 

in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 
proposed if any by the Board of Directors Is subject to the 

ofthe Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
preferential amounts.The distribution will be In Proportion to the number 

(iv) The Company has issued Nil shares of Rs 10/- as bonus shares out of free reserves during the period of five years immediately preceding the 

13 

14 

15 

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is set out below: 

  PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 
( No, of Shares In Thousand) 

As at March 31, 2021 

(No. of Shares in Thousand) 
  Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each ; 

Opening number of shares outstanding 

  

320,00 210.00 
Add: No. of Shares issued during the year - 110.00 

Closing number of shares outstanding 320.00 320,00 
  

The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is set out below: 

  
PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

        

(No. of Shares In Th d) | (No. of Shares in Th d) 

Anandi Teltia 
No. of Shares Held 

154.90 154.90 
Percentage of Share Holding 

48% 48% 

Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelapers Pvt Ltd 
No. of Shares Held 165.10 165.10 Percentage of Share Holding 52% 52% 

Total Nos. of Shares Held 320.00 320.00 _ 

Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 
Promoter Name (No. of Shares in Thousand) | (No. of Shares in Th d) 

Anandi Teltia 

No. OF Shares 
154.90 154.90 % of Total Shares 

48% 48% % Change during the year 
0% 26% Pioneer Facor IT Infradevelopers Pvt Ltd 

No. Of Shares 
165,10 165.10 % of Total Shares 

52% 52% % Change during the year 
0% 26% Total Nos. of Shares Held 320.00 320.00     
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

  

  

              

  

RESERVES & SURPLUS 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021. 
( Rs. In Thousand) ( Rs. in Thousand) 

Profit & Loss Account -Surplus\ (Deficit) 
Opening Balance 

26,716.58 22,350.08 Add : Addition during the Year 11,292.98 4,366.50 

TOTAL 38,009.56 26,716.58 

LONG TERM BORROWINGS 
Secured Loan 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021. 

  (Rs. in Thousand) _ (Rs. In Thousand) 
  

            
  

    
  

  

  

Term Loan From Standard Chartered Bank 101,349.93 44,208.56 Term Loan From Yes Bank for Vehicle 55.49 1,289.78 

hea 101,405.42 45,498.34 

DEFERRED T, E 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. in Th a | 

Timing Difference 

On Account of WOV (2,490.10) 1,444.21 

Net Timing Difference (2,450.10) 1444.21 

Opening Balance of Deferred Tax Liability/Asset 363.51 (93.45) Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Liability/Asset 626.76 363.51 
Net Deferred Tax Provision 

(263.25) (456.96)           

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits under the provisions of the income Tax Act 1961. Deferred tax 
resulting from timing differences between book and taxable profit is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date, In accordance with Accounting standards (AS. 22)" 
issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Accounting for Taxes on Income" 

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

SH M INGS 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021. 

(Rs. in Th d) (Rs. In Th d) 
Unsecured Loan 

From Others 
25,000.00 60,000.00 From Related Party 

2,51,976.02 1,38,041.41 

TOTAL 2,76,976,02 1,98,041.41 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

(Rs. in Thousand) ( Rs. In Thousand) 
Secured Loan 

Working capital facilities From Banks 1,38,413.54 20,715.85 Term Loan From Banks (due in next 12 months) 5,976.59 1,130.01 

TOTAL 1,44,390,53 21,845.86 
          

 



Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 
TRADE PAYABLE 
  

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 

(Rs. In Thousand) 
As at March 31, 2021 

(Rs. In Thousand) 
  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises: 
(a) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year 

(b) Interest thereon 

{c) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting year 

(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
Payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Mic ro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
{e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accountang year 
(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

  

41,531.64 89,771.56 

  Total —— 41,531.64 89,771.56 
  

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule 

  
PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

  (Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Th d) 
  MSME 

~ Less than 1 Year 

~1-2 Years 

- 2-3 Years 

- More than 3 Years 

Total 

Others 

- Less than 1 Year 

+ 1-2 Years 
- 2-3 Years 

- More than 3 Years 
Tatal 

Disputed Dues-MSME 
~ Less than 1 Year 

- 1-2 Years 

~2-3 Years 
- More than 3 Years 

Total 

Disputed Oues-Others 

- Less than 1 Year 

~ 1-2 Years 

- 2-3 Years 

- More than 3 Years 

Total   
  

  

40,813.73 

663.51 
54.40 

33,626.63 
56,120.35 

24,58. 

  

41,531.64 89,771.56 
  

  

  

  

  

      89,771.56 Ee   
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

  

  

            

  

  

  
    
  

  

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 
( Rs. In Thousand) { Rs. In Thousand) 

Others payable: 

Statutory Dues 2,933.52 1,870.65 Audit Fee Payable 
30.00 15.00 Salary Payable 
348.95 362.34 Expenses Payable 
904.20 4,376.52 

Others payable: 
- 99.00 Advance from Customer 39,762.96 - Accured Interest 

1,247.49 - imprest (Cr. Balance) 
124.98 - 

TOTAL 45,352.10 6,723.61 

T TER! SIONS 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 
(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 

Opening Salance 
963.87 3,280.23 Utilized During the Year 
(963.87) (3,269.80) 

Provision During the year 
5,035.40 953.44 

Closing Balance §,035.40 963.87 | 

NON ENT 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021, 
(Rs. in Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 

  Investment in Equity Instrument 

Ankita Agro Foods & Processing Pvt Ltd- 

            

    

  

  

  
  

      

Equity Shares 13,50,000 @ RS 10 Each (Previous Year 13,50,000) 13,500.00 13,500.00 Danton Power Pvt Ltd 
5.10 5.10 Equity Shares 510 @Rs 10 each (Previous Year 510) : , Futurelife Foods Pvt Ltd 

Equity Shares 1,51,364@ Rs 10 each (Equity Shares 1,50,365@ Rs 10 each and 
Rs.90 Share Premium and Equity Shares 999@ Rs 10 each) (Previous Year 999) 

15,046.49 9.99 Ethnic Food Manufacturing Private limited 
Equity Shares Current Year NIL (Previous Year 999) 

99.00 KEHAN SOLARWORLD PVT LTD 

Equity Shares 9,23,100 @ Rs 10 each (Previous Year 9,23,100 Shares) 9,231.00 9,231.00 

Investment in Instruments Other than Equity 

UT! quid Fund 
100.00 100.00 

TOTAL 37,882.59 22,945.09 

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 
( Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. li Thousand) | PRELIMINARY EXPENSES 

Opening Balance 

Preliminary Expenses incurred during the year 
Less: Written off during the year 

= Closing Balance (Total-a) 
- 

Authorized Capital increase Expenses 
Opening Balance 

18.90 37,80 Expenses incurred during the year 
- - Less: Written off during the year 

18.90 18,90 Closing Balance {Total-B) 
- 18,90 

TOTAL (A+8) 
18.90         
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

  

  
  

    

TRADE RECEIVABLES 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021. 

(Rs. In Thousand) ( Rs. In Thousand) 
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding 

siz months from the date they are due for payment 
Secured, considered good - - 
Unsecured , considered good 3,927.05 74,129.75 Doubtful less allowances for bad and doubtful debts . : 

Subtotal _3,927.05 74,129.75 
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period not exceeding 

six months from the date they are due for payment 
Secured, considered good - . 
Unsecured , considered good 1,02,943.06 10,589.76 
Doubtful less allowances for bad and doubtful debts : = 

Sbtotal 1,02,943.06 es 30, 583,75 | 
TOTAL 1,06,879.12 84,719.51 | 

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021. 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good 

~ Less than 6 Months 102943.06 10589.76 
> 6 Months to 1 Year 

3410.26 70365.86 
1-2 Years 

507.78 2971.62 
- 2-3 Years 

241,89 
-More than 3 Years 9.01 550.38) 

Total 
1,06,870.11 84,719.51 

Undisputed Trade Recelvables - Considered Doubtful 

~ Less than 6 Months 
- ‘ 

- 6 Months to 1 Year 
+ = 

= 1-2 Years = - 
~2-3 Years 

= 
- More than 3 Years 

= : 
Total 

= = 

Disputed Trade Recelvables - Considered Good 
- Less than 6 Months 

= = ~6 Months to 1 Year 
= $ -1-2 Years 

- 2-3 Years 
. > 

>More than 3 Years 
= 

Total < 

Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful 
- Less than 6 Months 
- 6 Months to 1 Year 

~ 1-2 Years 
= * 

- 2-3 Years 
+ ~ 

- More than 3 Years 
- - 

Total 
. - 

TOTAL 106,870.11 84,719.51 

CAS! IVAI 

PARTICULARS AS at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 
(Rs. In Th d) (Rs. in Tho d) 

Balance with Banks (in Current A/c) 
35.26 2,038.82 Debit Balance in OD Account 

18,217.70 “ Cash in hand (As Certified by the Management] S721 52,17 
FDR (Pledged With Bank) 

1,10, 764.06 5,946.74 

TOTAL 1,29,074.23 8,037.23         
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INVENTORIES 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021. 
(Rs. in Th i) (Rs. in Thousand) 

Stock In Trade 
15,233.36 20,333.98 

TOTAL 15,233.36 20,333.98 
Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021. 

(Rs. In Tho: d) ( As. in Tt }} 

Advances with Revenue Authorities (GST Input) 13,090.80 9,920.94 
TDS & Advance tax 

11,754.98 7,672.67 
Other Loan & Advances 2,96,283,04 2,39,169,48 

TOTAL 3.21,128.87 2,56,763.09 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2022 AS at March 31, 2021 

(Rs. In Th 4) (Rs. in Thousand) 

Retention 
136.50 136.50 

Other Receviable 
10.00 19.99 

Security Deposit 
80.00 35.00 Advance to Suppliers 52,371.07 4,187.66 

Prepaid Insurance 
4,352.77 69.82 

TOTAL 53,950.34 4,498.97           
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17 Pi TIO} 

71 PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 

Sale of Products / Services 2,80,760.20 188,557.34 

Total 2,80,760.20 1,88,557.34 

17.2 Sale of Products / Services Includes: 

Receipt of Subsidy 
- “ 

Sale of Solar Products/ Services 2,80,760,20 1,88,557.34 
2,80,760.20 1,88,557.34 

18 OTHER INCOME 

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Th d) 

Interest On FOR 2,555.29 424.84 
Interest On Income Tax Refund 128.22 84.55 
Interest On Loan 22,222.67 20,881.58 
Other receipts 

1.39 1,606.38 
installation & Testing 4,319,03 3 
Baddebts Recovered 195.36 
Short & Excess 1.28 - 
Exchange Gain 337.86 = 

Total 29,761.10 22,997.35 | 
19 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK IN TRADE 

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 
  

Stock In Trade 

            

  

  

  

At The Beginning of Accounting Period 20,333.98 19,126.72 
At The End of Accounting Period 15,233.36 20,333.98 

Total 5,100.62 1,2 

20 DIRECT EXPENSES 

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 

Freight Inward 
3,231.88 61,60 

installation and Commissioning Charges 25,431.82 44,153.16 
Site Expenses 10,826.86 20,387.84 Custom Clearance Charges 43,287.16 6,019.69 
Support services 1,170.00 - 
Survey Expenses 

140,00 Co Total 84,087.72 70,622.29           
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MPL EXPENSES 

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 34, 2021 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 

Salaries, Wages, EPF, ESIC and Bonus ete 4,505.19 4,453.48 
Staff Welfare Expenses 203.37 60.64 

Total 4,708.56 514.12 

FINANCE COST 

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
(Rs. In Th d) (Rs. In Thousand) 

Interest on car Loan 169,24 235.28 
Interest on Direct and Indirect Tax Dues 36.91 81,53 
Interest on Unsecured Loan 28,066,32 13,161.05 
Interest on CC account 1,741.56 2,524.36 
Loan Processing Fee and Bank Chargees 465.21 431.80 
Interest on LAP (EMI) and ECL Loan 8,730.29 3,783.65 
Bank Guarantee and LC issuance charges 4,109.67 48.17 

Total 43,319.20 20,265.84 

OTHER EXPENSES 

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Ris. In Thousand) 
Indirect Expenses: 

Administrative charges 11.99 10.90 
Analysis Charges - 47.40 
Advertisement Expenses 69,52 a 
Audit Fee 15.00 15.00 
Bad Debts 

11,421.57 
{Business Promotion Expenses - 23.00 
Car Running & Maintenance Expenses 240.84 196.88 
CEIG Approval fee / Netmetering Fee 2.02 29.89 
Computer Running & Maintenance Expenses 200.66 8.90 
Freight Out Ward - 138.41 
Legal & Consultancy Charges 10,995.52 14,290.99 
Conveyance 

571,03 499,23 
Forcasting & Scheduling Services 36.00 72.00 
Miscellaneous Expenses VLA 404.72 
Office Exp. 

17.98 68.09 
Subscription Expenses 87,78 228,08 
Courier Charges 172.44 86.81 
Preliminary Expenses Written off 18.90 18,90 
Printing & Stationery 26.41 14,19 
Rent 

1,815.00 318,75 
Repair & Maintenance Exp. 153.18 135.39 
Security Exp, 616.84 $6.00 
Telephone Expenses 51.03 29.83 
Tour & Travelling Expenses 1,314.74 1,124.85 
Tour & Travelling Expenses (International) 306.00 - 
Insurance Expenses 

851.76 173,03 
Market Assessment & Setup Charges 599.36 963.00 
Rates & Taxes 121,35 194.69 
ROC Filing Charges 

71,61 3,00 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 3,299.05 - 
Sundry Balance Written Off 1,169.76 0.12 
Tender Fee 

71.25 100.28 
|Registration Charges 16.85 
Total >. 23,641.64 30,713.90 

    AE 
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23.2 

Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED AS PER SCHEDULE II] OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2021-22 2020-21 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 
Payment to Auditor 

As Audit Fee 15.00 15.00 

15.00 15.00 

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE 

2021-22 2020-21 

(Rs. In Thousand) (Rs. In Thousand) 
Net Profit 11,202.98 4,366 50 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year in thousand. $20.00 210,00 
Basic earning per share 35.29 20.79 

Weighted average number of shares (including potential equity en 
shares) outstanding during the year in thousand, 320,00 210,00 

Diluted earning per share 35.29 20.79         
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

  

Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited (The Company) is a private limited company domiciled 
in India and Incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, CIN No. of the Company 
is U72900DL2003PTC120954. The Company is engaged in the business of Solar Power Plant Setup, 
EPC Contract, PPA Contract, Food & Food Products, agricultural produce Etc. 

Note No. 25) ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

25.1) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The Financial statements have been prepared in accordance to comply in all material respects with the 
notified accounting standards by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rule 2006 and the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention on accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are 
consistent with those used in the previous year. These accounts are prepared on accounting principles 
of a going concern, 

25.2) REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenue is recognized on transfer of significant risk & reward which can be reliably measured, and it 
is reasonable to expect ultimate collection and there exists no significant uncertainty in its ultimate 
realization. 

All Claims by or against the company are recognized on acceptance and/or receipt. 

25.3) USE OF ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liability on the date of the financial statements and the 
results of operations during the reporting years. Although these estimates are based upon 
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those 
estimates and revisions, if any, are recognized in the period in which the results are materialized. 

25.4) PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENTS & INTANGIBLE ASSETS. 

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment’s: 
a) These are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses 

(if any). The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, if capitalization criteria are met 
and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended 
use. pe SAss 

So 
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

b) The cost of assets not ready to put to use before the year end are disclosed under capital work 
-In- progress, 

c) Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of Plant, Property and Equipments is added to its 
book value only if it increases the future benefits from existing assets beyond its previously 
assessed standard of performance. 

(ii) Intangible Assets: 

a) Intangible assets acquired are measured at cost less accumulated amortization, less 
accumulated impairment, if any. Software which are not an integral part of PPE, is treated as 
intangible assets and amortised over a period of three years or its licensed period. Software 
which are integral part of PPE are amortised over the life of that PPE. 

25.5) 

1) 

2) 

Depreciation and amortization: 

Property, Plant and Equipment’s: 

a) 

b) 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments has been provided on straight line 
method on the basis of useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to 
the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets added, sold or discarded during the year 
is provided on pro-rata basis. 

Assets value upto Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition/purchase. 

Gains or losses arising from sale of fixed assets are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss when the asset is sold. 

Intangible assets: 

a) 

b) 

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic 
life, 

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at each financial year 
end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from the previous 
estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly. If there has been a significant 
change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization 
method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted for in 
accordance with AS-5 Net profit or loss for the period, prior period items and changes in 
accounting policies. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the Asset is derecognized. 

 



25.6) 

a) 

b) 

b) 

25.8) 

25.9) 

d) 

Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/CONTINGENT ASSETS 

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are reco gnized in books 
of account when there is a present obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that 
there will be an outflow of resources. 

The Liabilities or obligations, which is not crystalised or cannot be crystalised as on date of 
Balance Sheet are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. 

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. 

TAXATION 

Tax expenses comprise current and deferred tax. Current tax comprises Company's tax 
liability for the current financial year as well as additional tax paid, if any, during the year in 
respect of earlier years on receipt of demand from the authorities. For computation of taxable 
income under the Income Tax Act, 1961, accrual basis of accounting has been adopted and 
consistently followed by the Company. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed and recognized on the basis of timing 
differences at the Balance Sheet date being the differences between taxable income and 
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods, in accordance with Accounting Standard 22 issued by the institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized based on management estimates of reasonable certainty 
that sufficient taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognized to 
the extent that it has become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Liability towards gratuity is not provided in the books. The same is accounted for as and 
when paid. 

INVESTMENTS 

Investment made by the Company are long term strategic investments. 

Long term/non-current investments are carried at cost. Any fluctuation in market prices of the 
shares, which in the opinion of the management are temporary in nature, do not affect the 
valuation of our investments and are not considered in accounts. 

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year 
from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All 
other investments are classified as long-term / non-current investments. 

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of the cost and fair value 
determined in on an individual investment basis. 

f As: \ 
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25.10) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATIONS 

a) Initial Recognition 
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company at the exchange rates 
prevailing on the date of the transactions or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the 
date of the transaction. 

b) Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date 
Foreign currency monetary items (other than derivative contracts) of the Company 
outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are restated at the year-end rates. 

c) Treatment of exchange differences 
Exchange differences arising on settlement of short-term foreign currency monetary assets 
and liabilities are recognized as income or expense in the statement of Profit and Loss, except 
in case of long time Liabilities, where they relate to acquisition of Fixed Assets, in which case 
they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets. 

  

25.11) BORROWING COST 

Other borrowing cost is recognized as an expense in the period in which it incurred. 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are included in the cost of that asset (If any). 

25.12) NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 

a) Contingent liability 
(a) Rs 2586.63 lakh BG Issued (Gross) by Bank on behalf of the company (Previous Year 143.44 
lakh). 

(b) Demand of Rs 220,06 lakhs raised by Dept of Trade & Taxes, (VAT), New Delhi in respect of 
FY 2016-17 against which company has gone into appeal. 

b) Company had given total advances of Rs. 385.56 lakh paid in different tranches/ requirements to 
Karmic Energy Pvt Lid for acquiring majority stake in the said company. The matter is sub 
judice & being followed up. 

c) In the opinion of the board, the current assets, Loans and advances have the value at least equal to 
the amount stated in the Balance Sheet on realization in the ordinary course of business and 
provisions for all the known liabilities have been made. 

d) The prior period expenses debited to profit & loss account during the year - NIL (Previous Year 
NIL). 
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e) Income Earned and Expenses incurred in foreign currency. 

  

EXPENSES IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 2021-22 {in INR) 2020-21 (in INR) 

Purchase 49,91,685.67 2,19,51,733.94 
Foreign Travel 3,05,995.16 NIL 
Foreign Business Development & Marketing Exp §,86,649.49 9,63,000 

EARNING IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 2021-22 2020-21 

NIL NIL 

f) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/re-classified wherever necessary to make them 
comparable with the current year’s figures. 

g) The matters/Accounting Standards not specifically commented upon/reported herein above are 
either not applicable and/or not relevant. 

h) Deferred Tax Assets Provision has been made as per AS-22 is Rs 2.63 lakh during the financial 
year. (Previous Year Deferred Tax Assets was 4.57 lakh) 

i) Company has been Sanctioned working Capital facilities and term loans by bank as per following Details: - 

(a) Working Capital 

  

  

  

            

      

Facilities 

Amount 

Sanctioned 

Bank Name INR in Lacs Nature Security 

Mortgage of Immovable Property, Corporate Guarantee 

by Pioneer Securities Pvt Ltd and Pioneer Facor IT 

Infradeviopers Pvt Ltd & Directors. 

Standard Chartered Working Outstanding payable under existing Loan account has 
Bank 500 Capital been paid/redemption done and closed in April 2021. 

Exclusive Charge over all Assets of Solarworld Energy 

solution private limited 

Personal Guarantee of Directors and their relatives, 
Mortgage charge on 3°, 4 5", 6", and 10" floor of Tower 

Working A Built on plot No. B-8, sector 62, Noida Uttar Pradesh 
HDFC Bank Ltd 7540 Capital 201301, of Pioneer Eserve Pvt Ltd, 

(b) Term Loans- for Car 

| Amount sanctioned | Bank Name = fe Fae ee: | eae ; Security 

YES Bank Ltd 35.00 __ Vehicle Loan Hypothecation of vehicle.       
  

(c) Term Loan- 

  

Loan Against Property 
| 

Bank Name Nature 
INR In Lac. Security 
  

Amount sanctioned | 

| 

j 
| Mortgage of Immovable Property, Corporate 

Standard Chartered 1100.00 Loan Against= s=Guarantee by Pioneer Securities Pvt Ltd and Pioneer 
Bank : Property racex It Infradeviopers Pvt Ltd & Personal Guarantee 

rectors, etc, 
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J) In accordance with the requirement of Accounting Standard-18 issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India on Related Party Disclosure, as identified and certified by the 

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

      

management is: 

Amount in INR 
Name of Relationsh | Nature of | Amount Dr./(Cr.) Paid/Refund/ | Received/ Dr./(Cr.) Balance 
Related ip Transacti | Debit to Balance as Given of Adj. During as on 
Party on Profitand | on Loan During | the Year 31.03.2022 

Loss 31.03.2021 the year 

Gaurav Relative of Loan 24,44,170 | (2,29,10,548) | 1,62,44,417 24,44,170 (91,10,301) 
Teltia Director Taken 

Kartik Director Loan - = 19,00,000 19,00,000 - 
Teltia Taken 

Rishabh Director Loan 7,83,589 | (65,29,911) 50,78,359 7,83,589 (22,35,141) 
Jain Taken 

Samiksha | Relative of Loan 5,52,152 | (46,01,268) 55,215 552,452 (50,98,205) 
Jain Director Taken 

Sushil Relative of Loan 20,42,340 | (2,82,73,04 | 2,65,04,334 2,50,43,340 | (2,68,12,053) 
Kumar Jain | Director Taken 7) 

Teltia Significant Loan - (52,96,833) 52,96,833 é 
Trading influence Taken 
Private 

Limited 

Pioneer Holding Loan 83,98,023 | (6,99,83,52 8,39,802 83,98,023 | (7,75,41,744) 
Facor IT company Taken 3) 

Infradevlo 

pers Pvt 

Ltd 

PIONEER Director Loan 28,90,191 2,32,89,019 | 12,13,90,191 (9,81,01,172) 
FINCAP has Taken 
PVT LTD substantia 

| Interest 

Mangal Relative of | Salary 2,42,400 
Chand Director Paid 

Teltia 

Pioneer Holding Rent Paid | 17,25,000 
Facor IT company 

Infradevio 

pers Pvt 

Ltd 

Sushil Director is | Professio 18,00,000 
Jeetpuria | partner in nal fees 

& Co. firm paid 
Ankita Associate 38,786 

Agroand | Company | Sales/inco 
food me 

Processing 

Pyt Ltd.                    



  

  

  

  

  

Ankita Associate | Purchase/ 65,600 
Agro and Company | Expenses 

food 

Processing 

Pvt Ltd, 

Kartik Common Loan 10,55,000 10,55,000 
Solarworld | Director Given 

Pvt Ltd 

Umesh | Relative of Loan 2,50,00,000 2,50,00,000 
Agarwal Director Given 

PIONEER Director | Rent Paid 90,000 
FINCAP has 

PVTLTD | substantia 

| Interest                 

25.13) Other Statutory Information 

The company does not hold or own any immovable property whose title deed is not in the 
name of company, 

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and Equipment and intangible asset. 
(Previous year- NIL) 

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances to Promoters, Directors or KMP it has 
given loans to related parties after due compliance of rules and procedures. All loans are 
repayable on demand and terms are specified. Details are as follows: - 

  

  

  

  

              

IN INR 
Description Loans Advances in| Guarantees | Security 

the nature 
of Loans 

Aggregate amount of loan/advances| 2,98,25,929 0 0 0 
in the nature of 
loan/security/guarantee granted 
/issued during the year to 
Subsidiaries/Joint 
venture/associates/related parties 
Other than subsidiaries/joint | 1,75,00,000 0 0 0 
venture/associates as 
Balance outstanding as at Balance| 1,75,00,000 0 0 0 
Sheet Date in respect of loans and 
advances given during the year- 
other than subsidiary/Joint venture 
or associates 
In respect of subsidiaries/joint | 2,60,55,000 0 0 0 
venture/associates 
  

ee 

So Qa, “ > 

s/f ©, \\ 
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ON 

  

   
   

 



vi) 

vii) 

vill) 

x) 

xi) 

Xi) 

xiii) 

Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

Capital- Work-in Progress (CWIP) 

There is no capital-work-in-progress held by the company. Hence no ageing schedule of 
capital work in progress is required to be given. 

The Company has no Intangible assets under development. Hence, ageing schedule is not 
applicable. (Previous year- NIL) 

No proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company for holding benami 
property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
hereunder. (Previous year- NIL) 

As per information and explanations provided to us, the company has not been declared as a 
wilful defaulter, at any time, by the bank or financial Institution or other lender during the 
reporting period in terms of guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India. (Previous year- 
NIL) 

As per information and explanations provided to us the Company does not have any 
transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. (Previous year- NIL) 

Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium: - 

a. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other 
person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
ultimate beneficiaries. 

b. No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or 
provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries. 

The Company has used the borrowed funds, if any, for the purpose for which the funds were 
raised, 

There is no transaction that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the reporting 
period under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or rules made thereunder. (Previous year- NIL) 

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the 
reporting period. (Previous year- NIL) 

There is no charge or satisfaction yet to be registered: with registrar of Companies beyond the 
Statutory period. (Previous year- NIL) fe Ne\ 

 



xiv) 
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The company has no layers of companies under it, so the rules relating to the number of layers 
prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on 
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable. (Previous year- NIL) 

xv) 

to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. (Previous year- NIL) 

XVi) 

There is no scheme of arrangement approved by competent authority in terms of section 230 

The Company has borrowed funds from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security 
of current and other assets decides Mortgage charge on 3”, 4": 5%, 6, and 10" floor of Tower A 
Built on plot No. B-8, sector 62, Noida Uttar Pradesh 201301, of Pioneer Eserve Pvt Ltd. There is no 
difference in figures reported to Bank and books of accounts (Previous year- NIL) 

xvil) The Ratios for the years ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 are as follows: 

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

    

Particulars | Numerator | Denominator As at As at Change in Reason 
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021 | Percentage 

Current Ratio | Current Current 1.22 1.18 3.44% Since 
assets liabilities Changes is 

Less than 
25% 

explanation 
not required 

Debt-Equity | Total Debt | Shareholder’s | 9.61 6.16 56.10% Due to 
Ratio Equity higher 

amount of 
loan in 

__| current year 
Debt Service | Profits Debt Service | 1.27 135 10.18% Since 
Coverage available Changes is 
Ratio for debt Less than 

service 25% 
explanation 
not required 

Return on | Net Profits | Average 0,23 0.10 128.68% Due to better 
Equity Ratio | aftertaxes | Shareholder’s turnover and 

Equity profit. 
Inventory Cost of | Average 7.68 4.03 90.51% Due to 
turnover ratio | goods sold | Inventory higher 

| turnover, 
Trade Revenue Average 2.93 ala -5.88% Since 
Receivables Trade Changes is 
Turnover Receivable Less than 
Ratio 

25% 
explanation         

  

      
not required |



    

  

  

                

Trade Total Average 3.28 1.69 94.74% Due to better 
Payables Purchases Trade inventory 
Turnover Payables management 
Ratio & higher 

turnover 
Net Capital | Revenue Working 2.49 3.31 -24.93% Since 
Turnover Capital Changes is 
Ratio Less than 

25% 
explanation 
not required | 

Net Profit | Net Profits | Revenue 0.04 0.02 73.69% Due to 
Ratio higher 

operational 
performance. 

Return on | Profit Capital 0.51 0.38 31.53% Due to 
Capital before Employed higher 
Employed interest and operational 

taxes performance 
& better 
profit. 

Return on | Net Profits | Cost of | NIL NIL NIL No reference 
investment after taxes | Investment on 

investments 
other than 

capital 
appreciation 
in general.     

Signature to Note “1” to “25” 
As per our report of even date attached 

For Lov Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.: 008472N 

  

Adarsh Bhatia 
Proprietor Ke BASS 
M. No. 084384 oN 
i bmn Poles 

Place:NewDelhi > = yy 
Date: 02-09-2022 
UDIN: ALeBU Zo AVHA7P§3.9¢ 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Nee Rishabh Jain 

Director 

DIN-05115384 

Address-R-13, Nehru 

Enclave, Kalkaji, 

New Delhi-110019 

oe or 

DIN-06610105 

Address: - C-31, Sector-47, 

Noida, Gautam Budh Nagar, 

Uttar Pradesh-201303 

 



LOV BHATIA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 

The Members of 

Salarworld Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanylng consolidated financial statements of SOLARWORLD ENERGY 
SOLUTIONS PVT LTD (herelnafter referred to as “the Holding Company"), its subsidiary(les) (the HoldIng 
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) & its associate(s) comprising of the 
consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors, as applicable, on separate financial statements 
and on the other financial information of the subsidiary(ies), associate(s), the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affalrs of the Group, its associate(s) as at March 
31, 2022, their consolidated profit, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
*Auditing {SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolldated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, associate(s), in accordance with 
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 

Office : C - 2/258, Janakpuri, New Delhi — 110058 (India} Mob. : 91- 99112 22665 



and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibllities in accordance with 

these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

Other Information 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information Included In the Annual report, but does not Include the 

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be 

made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information identified above and when it becomes avallable and, in 

doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 

financial statements or our knowledge obtalned in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statement 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors Is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 

consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and falr view 

of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance Including income, 

consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its 

associate(s) in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indla specified under 

section 133 of the Act read with the relevant companies rules, as amended. The respective Board of 

Directors of the companies Included in the Group and of its associate(s) are responsible for maintenance 

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 

assets of the Group and of its assoclate(s} and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and malntenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 

the consolldated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companles 

included in the Group and of its associate(s} are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of 



its associate(s) to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basls of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those respective Board of 

Directors of the companies Included in the Group and of its associate(s) are also responsible for 

overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate(s). 

Auditor’s Responsibllities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 

report that includes our oplnion. Reasonable assurance is a high levei of assurance, but Is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a materiai misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

« Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to deslgn audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the clrcumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basls of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its assoclate(s) to continue as 

a going concern. If we conclude that a materfal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, If such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 



obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Group and its associate(s) to cease to continue as a going concern. 

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financlal statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in @ manner that achleves fair presentation. 

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitles or 

business activitles within the Group and its associate(s) of which we are the independent auditors and 

whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated financlal 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 

financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are 

the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, 

which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 

audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entitles 

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those 

charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

As per information provided by management, pre-acqulsition Proflt/Loss and post-acquisition profit/ioss 

has been taken for consolidation purpose. our opinion on the consolidated financlal statements, and our 

report on other Legal and Regulatory requirement below, is not modified in respect of the above matter 

with respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor and the financial 

statements certified by the Management. 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on 

the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other 

financial information of the subsidiary company(ies), assoclate company{les) incorporated in Indla, as 

noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified 

in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the 

other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary(ies), 

associate(s), as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the 

information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as It appears from our examination of 

those books and reports of the other auditors; 

{c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account malntalned for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements; 

{d) In our opinion, the aforesald consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies read with relevant Companies 
{Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors of the Holding Company as 
on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of 
the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company(ies), associate company(ies), none of the directors of 
the Group's companies, its associate(s} , incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act; 

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate companles, 
Incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure 2" to this report; 



(g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the 

subsidiary(ies), associate(s) incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 

March 31, 2022 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiary(ies), associate(s) 

incorporated in India to their directors, wherever applicable, in accordance with the provisions of 

section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report 

of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the 

subsidiary(ies), associate(s) as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph: 

L. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact Its financial position; 

fi. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. The Company was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund during the year. 

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and bellef, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or In any other persons or entitles, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Group from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Partles”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitles identified In any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate In the 

circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsldiary{l es} which are 
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing 
has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause {a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 



v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year/ subsequent to the year- end by the Holding 
company, subsidiary company(ies), assoclate(s) incorporated in India, It is in compliance with section 
123 of the Act. 

For LOV Bhatia & Assaciates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: - 008472N 

(Proprietor) 

M. No. 084384 

Place : New Dethi 
Date : 24-09-2022 

UDIN: 380242@H 2 pupzL 9gz



Annexure 1 referred to In paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our 

report of even date 

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, there are 

no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companles (Auditors Report} 

Order (CARO) reports of the companles included in the consolidated financlal statements. Accordingly, 

the requirement to report on clause 3(xxl} of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company. 

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SOLARWORLD ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Ciause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Solarworld Energy Solutions 

Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 

31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 

statements of the Holding Company and its subsldlary(ies) (the Holding Company and its subsidiary{ies) 

together referred to as “the Group”), Its associate(s), which are companies incorporated in India, as of 

that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, Its associate{s) , which are 

companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintalning internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guldance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 

of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls with 

reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guldance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 



“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of interna! financial controls, both, issued by ICAL Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financlal controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements was established and malntained and If such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and thelr operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financlal controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financlal controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements, 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financlal reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detectlon of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the degree of compllance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Group, its assoclate(s} , which are companies Incorporated in India, have, maintained 
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note issued by the ICA. 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid report under Sectlon 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to subsidiary, incorporated in 
India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary(ies) and its assoclate(s) 
incorporated in Indla. 

For LOV Bhatia & Assoclates 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: - 008472N 

Adarsh Bhatia 

(Proprietor) 

M. No. 084384 

Place : New Delhi 

Date : 24-09-2022 

UDIN: 2034 284 R g, D2E1gsz 



Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

CiN: U15100D1.2013PTC255455 
Regd. Offlce : 501, Padma Place, 86-Nehru Place, New Delhl-110019 

n h 

{Am. in Thousend INR) 

sl Particutar NoteNo. | Asat31/03/2022 | Asat3ifosf2021 

L |EQUITY AND uaBIES 
Shareholders' Fundg 

(2)  [Share Capital 1 3,200.00 3.200.00 Share Premium 
13,200.00 13,20000 Reserves and Surplus 2 56,751.33 3330351 

() [Minorityinterest 3 1035353 1181359 
{2)  [share Application Money pending alfotment 

Share Application Money pending allotment 4 - 20,667.60 
@) [NonCyrrent tsbllitleg 

Long Term Bomowings 5 11891969 67.198.43 Deferred Tax Liabilitles (Wet) 6 254441 192162 5} [Curent Uabifitles 
Short Term Borrowings. 7 42598407 22506224 Trade Payables 8 45,687.64 91,818.00 (Other Current Uabilitles 9 50,325.02 713071 Shore Term Provisions 10 550310 135187 TOTAL 7,32.268.79 4,85,667.27 

n |assers 
Non Current Assets 

o [px 
Intangible Assets 

Tanglble Assets 1 49,613.24 59,550.58 (Capital Work in Progress 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
Other Non-Current Assets 12 129 559.04 Non Current tnvestments 13 46,041.10 22,6479 Long Term Loans and Advances 

2 ree ets 
Trace Recelvatles 1 1,08.363.55 86.836.80 (Cosh and Cash Equivalents 15 1,33,402.77 38,43088 inventeries 16 1523336 2033398 Short Term Laans and Advances. 7 3,25,483.61 25273242 Other Current Assets 18 54,089.87 4,435.58 TOTAL 

7.32.26879 4,85,667.27 
Significant accounting palicles & 2 Notes on consalidated flnanclal Statements 23 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the consolidated financlal statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Lov Bhatla & Associates 
Chartered Accountant 

Forand on behalf of the Board FRN : 0084720 
P 

Adarsh Bhatla 
Rlshabh Jaln Kertlk Ty : Proprietor 

Director Dirpefor M. No. 034384 
DIN:05115384 DIN:06610105 uon: S OBUT ALy 8oupa ey s> R-13, Nehry €31, Sector47, Place : New Delh! 

Enclave Kalka)), Nolda,Gautam Budh Date:24.09-2022 New Delhl-110019 Nagar, 
Uttar Pradesh-201303 



Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455 
Regd, Office : 501, Padma Place, 86-Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 

Consolldated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 

{Amt. In Thousand INR) 
For the year ended For the year ended 

s1 Particular Note No. 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

Income 

! | Revenue 19 2,89,895.48 1,98,370.06 
Ul | Otherincome 20 30,490.35 22,997.35 Il | Total Revenue {J+11} 3,20,385,83 2,21,367.41 

Expenses 
Purchase 

1,31,563.55 81,205.03 
Stock {Increase}/Decrease 21 5,100.62 {1,207.26) 
Employee Benefit Expenses 22 13,510.09 4,987.18 
Finance Costs 23 45,433.30 23,01651 
Depreclation and Amortization Expenses 11 4,993.87 3,934.99 
Direct Exp 24 80,738.70 70,622.29 
Other Expenses 25 25,443.32 36,208.84 

W | Total Expenses 
3,06,783.45 2,18,767.58 

V| Profit/{Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary Items and tax{lll-Iv) 13,602.38 2,599.83 
VI | Exceptional ltems. 

- - 
Vil | Profit/{Loss) before extraordinary Items and tax{v-vl) 13,602.38 2,599.83 
Vil | Extraordinary ltems - - 
X { Profit/{Loss) before tax{Vil-VIIl} 13,602.38 2,599.83 
X | TaxExpenses - - 

- Current Tax 5,619.66 1,558.00 
- Mat Credit 

547.23)| {561.79)| 
- Beferred Tax 3 62279 27189 

X1 | Profit/{Loss) after tax{(X-X) 7.907.16 133173 
XNl | Minorlty Interest 

11,659.05)) 1,217.61 XIll | Profit/{Loss) for the perfod {XI-XUl} 9,566.21 11412 Eamings Per Equity Share {face Value of Rs. 10/-each) 2% 
Basic Earning Per Share (IN INR) 29.89 054 
Diluted Earning Per Share (IN INR) 29.89 054 

Significant accounting policles & 27 
Notes on consolidated financial Statements 28 

‘The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the consolldated financial statements 
As per our report of even date attached 
For Lov Bhatia & Assoclates 

Chartered Accountant For and on behalf of the Board FAN:008472N Pa, 

floinl. 
Adarsh Bhatia Rishabh Jaln etif - 
Proprietor - Director Direefor 
M. No. 084384 

DIN:05115384 DIN:06620105 UDIN: aaaw—iggq ROupae laca R-13, Nehru €-31, Sector-47, 
Place : New Delhi Enclave,Kalka]), Nolda,Gautam Budh 
Date: 24-09-2022 New Delhl-110019 Nagar, 

Uttar Pradesh-201303



Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

CIN: U15100DL2013PTC255455 
Regd. Offlce : 501, Padma Place, 86-Nehru Place, New Delhl-110019 

Consolldated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022 
{Amt. In Thousand INR) 

Forthe year ended For the year ended 
st Particular 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

A |CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

[Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 13,602.38 2,599.83 
Adjusted For : 

Depreciation 4,993.87 3,934.99 
[Misc. Exp. Written off 1932 153.94 
Interest Expenses 45,433.30 23,016.51 
Interest income & Foelgn Exchange (30,450.35)| (22,997.35) 
Operating Proflt Before Working Capital Changes 33,558.52 6,707.92 
|Changes In Working Capital < 

Changes Inventory 5,100.62 (1,207.26) 
Net Increase In Current Assets Except Cash & Bank (1,43,832.23), (4,448.10) 
Net Increase in Current Liabllity {2,936.05), (96,338.57) 

Cash Generated from Operating Activitles (1,08,109.14), (95,286.01) 
Less: Tax Paid 1,351.87 333158 
|Add: Extra Ordinary Items {186.89) {675.26), 
[Net Cash From Operating Activitles (1,09,647.90) {99,292.85) 

B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Fixed Assets/Sale 4,983.47 {102.64)| 
Investment (23,393.11) (23,500.00)| 
(Inc)/Dec in Other Non Current Assets - 
Interest Received 30,49035 22,99735 
[Net Cash Used In Investing Activities 12,080.71 9,394,71 

€ [CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES - 
Issue of Equity Share Capltal (14,632.01)| 43,967.60 
Proceeds From Borrowing 2,52,64339 99,199.87 
Payment of Interest (45,433.30) {23,016.51) 
Net Cash From Financlal Activitles 1,92,579.08 1,20,150.96 

Net Increase/Decrease in cash {A+B4C) 95,011.89 30,252.82 
|Add: Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 38,430.88 8,178.06 
Closing Cash and Cash Equlvalents 1,33,442.77 38,430.88 

Notes : 

1. The Consolldated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out In AS-3 
2. Figures have been regroupedy rearranged wherever necessary, 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Lov Bhatla & Assoclates 
Chartered Accountant 
FRN : 008472N 

b 
/J—(W/‘ Rishabh Jaln 
Adarsh Bhatla Director 
Proprietor DIN:05115384 
M. No. 533334 u3ey R-13, Nehru 
uoin: 93 O34} Adup e Enclave,Kalka]l, 
Place : New Delht P26 s New Del);l-lluflis 
Date : 24-09-2022 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Kartlk Teltla 
Directos 

DIN:06610105 

C-31, Sector- 
47,Nolda,Gautam Budh 

Nagar, 
Uttar Pradesh-201303 



Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 

) 

FAXTICUTRS Anatstoma A 9 3L0I02E 
" {8 ta Thovisnd) {Rs1n Thounane) [Aathorizad Share Cachr - 

10,00,000 (Prev. Y. $,00,000] Equlty Sharex of Ra. 10/- axch 1000000 o000 

ssued Share Coptal: 
.20.000 (Prav. ¥r. 3,20,000] Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- sach 320000 320000 

[Sutrerbed and FoBy Paidvp Share Capttad ¢ sz S xat0 000 (Prev. ¥r. 3,20,000) €ty Shares of s 10/- each 3.20,000 (Prev. ¥r. 3.20,000) Enuty Shares: joLee 3 % 

‘Vhe Corzpamy hak s clazs of shas's referrd 10 53 equlty shates having » 4ce valve of Re. - and preference that having  faca valus of s, 100/ However e3ch hotder of equity shates i enthled t sne vote potsbare. 
The Company Secures and piys BGends In Iodas fupens. The Gidend roposed I say by the Board of Director 1 sublect o the spproval of the shiveholdery s the ensulng ArveaalGenetal Masting. 
in the evwnt of heuidation ofthe Company, the hoiders of equlty shares will be erited torecaiveany of the remaining susets of the compacry, afer settiementof all bt and Ectibution of o3 pevfereecial amounts. Tha disribution willbe k1 proportion o the number of equlty shiret held by the sharshoiders. 

The Compary hat isued N shares of Ra /- 1 bonwn shares out o freerrseeves hring the period of fve years Imimadttaly praceding the date o Balance Sheet. 

The reconctlation of the Pumber of shares cutstancing st at tarch 11, 2072 and March 21, 2071 1 set cxt belcw: 
PARTOIARS [Ty I 

e eAshars) sorshares oSt e, 
‘Opening number of thares cutitanding 

2.20,000.00 212.000.00 _Ad4: Now of Shares lusued during the year 
- 22000060 [Gosiog oo s e o TR 300500 

T eta of sharahadrbociog oyt S hare 4.0 March 31, 2022 each 1. 2021t et st et 
RTICULARS Asst31032022 Asatdioaomy 

hi {No. ol Shares) [No. of Shares) 

manataes 
Ko of Sharer Held. 

2,54,300.00 15450000 Percentage of Shars Holding. 
&341X] 4k 

Ploneer f3cor IT Infradeveiopers Prt Li¢ 
Ho. of Shares Held 

1,65,10000 185,100.00 Seretageot hueidng sud s1m 
stsovrespmyy 

Sr— e [Ty s {ts 1w Thoviand) {hs.InThoutang} 
Proft & Lass Atcount -Surphus\(Oafic) 
mdflmllfllflwcfll‘flfl(nwhflw“flm 

330151 ua Frofslossor the vearie, thare from subsiciay] sseaz e Pre acoutstion profits  (Lom) of Subsidary 
. . W:Nlhp‘flmhfl/fiiflfl‘lm‘mwfll 

1310460 904759 | Add/Lass M-hwmwdmm(vmmnm) 
. rsace)) Arcurtvataieos spropeiaton 

ot Surplus n tha statement of profit and foss. 
SL2U6M 3330851 Las: Appropriations Fturetife Foeds i 11d prere - Lass: Appropriations Dihinic Foods Manutacturing Pyt Lid. 

(n7.ss)) - SubTotal (8) 
67N 0381 

Comatresae 
Toni et S S AT i KDY 

semonryvaeacse 
TnnmEE TN B r— oy s 

Pold upvakoe o1 shars s [ |Add :Pra Acauttrion Profit [ 1524 A8 ot Aequtiion roft 3 oast yeat. 280791 Lo 288 Pt Acmion Prof of e ent yess (1a3908) P 
Tams Tansy 

‘SUARE APPLICATION MONEY PEADING ALOTMINT 

LrErae = pPARTILAAS [Ri. 1 Thosand] {ReInth 
516 e rment Ecuity SA. 
12,96,576 Shares of Rs. 10/- each 

. 296876 

|Premium 

12.96,676 Shares of s 907- aach . 2mam 

(Total Koz of Shares Held 
. 29,667.60 
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5 lml%;%mfii 

s e e 
[Tormoan From Banks 11881969 LAUH 

TOTAL FXTUG [ZAEET] 

& DIFERRID TAX ASSCYSANATES INETH 

61 OIFERAIDTAXuASUMES (NET) 

i (A 1n v 8 o Tty 
[Teming Oferance 

On Account ol WDV (245010 sau2t 
[N Timing Diferance [I7ETS 
[Dpening Balance of Gafurmed Tax ttabliry/Assat (19208) (r640.22) 8atanca of Deferred Tax Lubry/Asset asuay) (to2162) et Deterred Tax Provision 622719 189 

62 Provision for curment tax 14 made sher laking into coatideration benalts undar the 
tacable proft s accounted for uring the 121 rates and laws that have bewn enacted 
Accounting for Tazes on Income™ sued by the inriute of Chartared Accountarts of adls, 

provisions of the tncome Tax Act 1551, Deferred tax rejulting from timing fferwnces batween bock and 
o substantively anacted 25 on the Batance shaat date, In accordance whth Accounting standsrds {AS. 22)* 

2 
PARTICULARS Anansimzmg 

[Re. In Yhovrand) 
Aansioma 
{Rs.InThousand) 

500000 
25197602 

€0,10545. 
13806142 

TOTAL P 19836637 

2z 
PARTICULARS AamImEn 

{Rs.1n Thoussnd) 
AsatILenzon 

{Rs.tn Thousang} [Secured toon 
| Working capita faciies From Barks 
[Short Term tean From Banks 13341354 

105541 
207188 

ToTAL 14300805 
617953 
635537 

28 

PARTICULARS AsatMarch3L,2001 
{Rs-In Thousand) 

AsatMamh 3L, 2001 
{Rs.ta Theusand) 

“lantantvesr 
2van 

“23van 
Morathan3vean 

Total 

Disputed Dues-MSME 
“Lessthand Year 
“12Yan 
“23Yers 
~More than3 Ya; 
Tot 

Olsputed Dues-Others 
~tasstanYear 
“12Yan 
“3van 
“Mors than3Vears 

Toat 

useaTs 
a1 
5440 

sEa 

AS5758 
22 The camoany does oot have any princizal amout and interest dos thareon remalning wgakd to. Developmant Act, 2006 81 at end of eurrant and previous fisanctabysar, 

51350 

enkcro, small and madiam entarpeises rogistered under Micro, Small and Medkem Enterprisas 
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OTHIB SURRDT SABKATIES 
T ey PASTICULARS {Re.tn Thousand) {Rs.tnThousang) 

et 475139 198565 
l:::‘:u" ’:‘ 'HQ 4000 3.00 

4 161243 57863 SalarePaybie 
10w042 497 Experses Pavable N a1 Othars pavatle 

N Advance from Customer 4)}2;;!: N 

Intarest Accrued. 124 

te it (Cr. Balance) 12499 = 

- n JOTAL 5032502 713071 

‘SHORTTERM PROVISIONS 

T KeetILez 
PARICULARS {Rs.n Thousand) {Rs.ta Thouzand) 

Opesing Balance bovtpid hptipm Uttzed Ouring the Yoar twssLa) bz Provision During the year S50 s 

JOTAL 5.503.10 135187 

‘OTHEANON CURRSNT ASSETS 

Tovision [ PATICULARS (Rt Thouand] {RelnThonand) PREIMTARY G eSes - (Opaning Baance 
|Preliminary Expansas incured during the year 

[Lass: Wentten off Guring the year 
| Coing Balance [otaba} 

|sutnorized Capratinerease Expenses 
[Oening Balance 2081 L [Expanses incurred during the year . ] Lats: Wrizten off during the year 1532 15284 (Cosing Batarc fTouta) 129 T 

JOTAL{A+D} 
135 33504 

nON QuARENT vESTIMENT. 
Tt Ao PARTICULARS (R In Thoweang] {88, Thoorsnd) lavestmentin Cquly insruments 

| Anka Agro Foods & Processing Pyt Lid- 

[ €xuity Shares 13.50,000 © RS 10 Exch {Pravious Year 811} 2847959 D0 Adeflass : Share tn post aculsition Loss/Proft of Assoclate 12104.68 9047.99 Sub Totat 
3285267 2134259 

[Futurekfe Foods vt td 

Equity Shares 1513640 Rs 10 aach {Equlty Shares 150,365 Rs 10 each and Rs.50 Share Premium and| Equrty 
|Shares 9359 Rs 10 wach) {Previous Yaar 995) 

1504649 . Adaflass : Share in post scquisition Loss/Profit of Associate 
it 36} SubTou! Batn 7 

Tont w5 P 
|tnvestment In instruments Other than Equity 

|UT Ui Fund 
100.00 100.00 

JOTAL 4504110 264159 

‘TRADE RECTIVABLES 

—p— AsatMarh 31,2022 AsmMIRIL 0L 
PARN {RIn Yhoussnd) [ R i0 Thousand). rade ecanabus ovistanding for period sxcesding 

stz moaths from the cate they ars due for payment 
Secured, considerad good . . 
Unsecured , considersd good 

NS 745118 Doubthitess alowances for bad and dociful dabts N - 
Subtotal 3,977.05 7467816 Frace Recehables outstanding for a period aot exceeding 

‘#tx months from the date Ly sre dus for paymant 
Secured, considered good . . 
Unsacured , considared good 

10443850 1221264 Doubthu less alowances for bad and doubtful dabts. - 2 Sobton TS 36 
ToTaL TEI6EST [T 
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Trade Recetvables Ageing Schedule 
KsatMarch3L, 2022 A3 3tMarch 31,2028, 

bkt {Re.ta Thousand) {Ra.t0 Thousand) 
ety Recevabies - Considered Good souses . 

341026 81027 
sar.7 297160} 

24183 
~More tan3Years 0] sso| 

Yol I3RS TeA620 

Undisputed Trade Recetvables - Conidered Doubricd . 
~Lassthan 6 Months N X 
+BMonthsto 1 Year . : 

Disputed Yrade Recelvabies- Considered Good 
“tess tan & Months . . 
~EHonths to1Yarr - - 
-12van . : 
~33van - . 
~Mors than 3Years - - 

Toul - - 

Disputed Trade Recatvables - Considered Doubtful 
“Less tan S Moehs . . 
~EMonthsto 1 Yarr - - 
“$%an . . 
~23van - - 
~Mora tunSYaars . - 

Tout < < 

ToTAL IR TEmEn 

CADH & CASH EQUIVALINTS 

AR Ratyiozn TGy 
i {8 tn Thousang) [Rs.1n Thoussnd) 

Batanca whh Bariks in Current A/c} 450123 24308 
Dabit Batance InCO Acoount 18217.10 . 
[Cash i hand {As Cartified by tha Management) 3912 5107 
FOR {Pledzed With Bank) 11076406 freet) 

ToTaL AT STASOEL 

IVENTORIES 

PARTICULARS. AL Jan eI 
(Re.tnThowssand) {Re InThoutand) 

stockinTrace 182336 3398 

ToTAL T2336 FEE 

SHORT TERMLOANS AND ADVANCES 

PARTICULARS. Ao R L 
(Rs.InThovrand] {Re.InThonand], 

[Advancas with Revanue Authortses (GSTIngut) 1452087 1021658 
705 & Advance tax 12,261.98 767266 
ovr 25830076 23820278 

ToTAL FELICY TLA 

QTHIR CURRENT ASHTS 

PARTICULARS AL AR 
{As.InThausang) (Re.InThousard) 

[Ratention 13650 13850 
Other Recevistia 1L 199 
Securtty Depostt 8000 Fr 
aavance 1o Supsbers s2371.07 419616 
Prapaid insurance/Prepald Expenses 138420 9793 
wip - : 

TOTAL EXD0 [T} 
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19.1 Revenoe From Openation. 
Tortha yeac ended SO | Foe e year ended S0 2001 

PARTICULARS (s InThowsand] {Rs.tn Thousand) 

Sul ot Prosuctserveas 28929548 19037006 
font SESE TSI, 

102 SulectProductiServicas nchud: 
tnstaluton & Commisioning Services eovided 
Sala ofSolrProducts 

295848 37006 

QTHERINCOME 

ey TorUevesr ended UG/ | Fortheyesr ended 3UI/I0LL 
b (e InThourand) (Rt Thousand) 

inarsston foR 235529 am insarest Ontrcome Tax Refund 28 035 ieraitonton nme 2088158 Other recaipts 139 ey rstatition & Testing 43190 . Bacdetrs Racovered 19536 - Short & Excass 128 - Exzhare Goin awras . Babance Wetman Off B - Pradhan Misnir Rojear Protsaban Yojana s - 
=0 o035 T, 

CUANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOOKIN TRADE 

TorthayerendedSURI/EL | Torbayens endedUOH/EL PATRGUARS Ro.In Thowsand) (R In Thossand) 
stoctnTrade 
1 Tha Bexineing of Accounting Pariod 202198 12672 s Tha ot Accocring Paricd 15236 nams 

Tont Time JOEED| 

MPLOYEE DEHCFIT EXPENSES 

p—— Tortheyesr exded DRI | For yesr anded SHAOTRGEL 
(e InThoutand) (RsIn Thoutand) 

133028 anese Staf Watara xpersas £oxY 66 
ot FEETTr) XA 
BNANCECOSY 

P For Ut year ended SURO/ZZ | For the year ended S/SI/IOLE 
(s InThourang) (Re InThoussna) 

etarestoncartoan 10028 252 intarest on irect ad indiroc Tax Duns 3635 [ rtareston Long Term Laans froe Bank 212 20522 tereston Unsecured s moesn ey Iotareston CCaczount 1186 252435 LoanProcassng Fes and Bank Chargeas 45106 2637 eterestonLAR (341 87021 7mass bark Gusrantes 3nd LC Hisuance ehargas perery an 
2 (5L PIETECY 
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DIALCTOPENSLS 

anars Fortheyesr ended3103/2012 | Fortha year anded 34/03/2021 
A (st Thoussnd) {hsIn Thoussnd) 

Froentimand :s’i:::; ] 
rassaton g Cameisioiog chages . s 

. 2030734 
[Custom Casrance Charges Hom 19136 
[Stamp Duty Chares - -  Supsort sarvc 117090 - 
Survey Looansas 100 - PecishanRoad Work 71250 N Rart0G S0t 2590 N RertGest Houa 12000 . RantMachinery s . Repateeg & Modifcstion Charges 625 . Securty Cabin Mating Expenses s . St Diesel Eoenses 20654 M e Exp- Food, Treveliog, Ete . ussz . [Stte Instalation Exparse; 22.70 M [Sne Mise Expenses 41245 M [Sme tfica Foundation Cleaning & Devalopmant 19580 - [Site Prisring & Stavionery x5 ss.8 N [sne setvn o 12151 . Ste Vanich Hirw Charges 184 . [Ste tand Lavatog and Grading Exp 1275907 - 
[fout 573870 EEE:) 

STHER DXOENSES 

Forthayearended 30I/ZRL | For theyear anded 35032021 
PARQUARS (s InThowrand] {hsInThousand) ndirect Expemaes: 

[Adrintstrativ charges s 1050 |anatyss Qurgas - 4740 aucnFen a0 nn rdvarisament Expenses 052 5027 Ea3Detts . ans 
. 30766 [Bestnass Promotion Expenses - 200 rRunning & Maloterance Expenses 208 19628 S Approvatan / Hetrataring Fe 20 22 puter Runnieg & Malrtenance Expenses 2085 2% [Freght Ot wars - 15341 [Lagar & Consudtaney Charges. s ugIR [comverance 2759 1993 [Forcatting & Schaduting Services 3800 20 inage GST nput N - [Misceaneous Expanses Tun wonn Oca Exz. 1758 5205 [Subscrpion Expanses o1 2100 Couer Crargas 7244 11058 Protininary Espaases wrzanoft 1933 1584 Printig & Statonary an 149 Paciing Eroanses - 490 o 181500 3173 Rapale & Malotanance Exp. 15310 1539 [Securtry x5 stess $600 [Takphona Expenses 5100 2083 [Toue & Traveling Exparsas 260670 Lauzs [Tour & Teavating Expansas (iternationst) 30600 - N L1842 wn 

100 . ot ftoss on Cumaney . . [Markat Assessment & Satup Qhurges 59936 96200 [Markating Expanses . 433728 Rates & Toxes 21 1345 [RoC FRing Charges 7680 16 Prot on saleof Reed Assats 329908 . Sates tax Damand . . [Short & Excass 116976 013 sundry Balance Wrttes O . . [Tardarse nas 11208 [Wabste Expenses 1688 - [toss on Sata ot Rxed Assats: 96306 - 
[Fost FITEn 1T 



Solarworld Energy Solutions Private timited 
\ \ 

252 . ADDMIORAL INFORMATION REGUIAED AS PER SCHEDULE T YO COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

) 
203122 o001 

Paymant ta Audnor 
AsAudnFeu 20 70 

AT TE, 

E0 CARNINGS PER FQUITY SHARE Tor131 ELTET) 
Computationof Bovic eyming pee share nd Oduted eyrpingRershare. 

exProfit 956621 11412 

Wa'ehted average aumbarof shares ovtstanding 
uringthe yese 2,200 210000 
[Basic earning per share [N IAR] 2929 oy 

Wo'ghtad sverage number of sharus (inckafing potantislequnty shraij outstanding during the year 

| 
220000 210000 

| (Dt earming per share QAL X (X3 

\ 
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Solarworld Energy Solutions Private Limited 
Regd. Office: 501-Padma Palace, 86 Nehru Place, New Delhi -110019 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2022 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Solarworld Energy Solutlons Private Limited (The Company) and its subsidiary/ies 
constltute “The Group” is a Private limited company domlclled in India and incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companles Act, 1956, CIN No. of the Company s 
U15100DL2013PTC255455. The Company Is engaged in the business of business of Solar 
Power Plant Setup, EPC Contract, PPA Contract, Food & Food Products Etc. 

Note 27 : Signlficant Accounting Policles - 

1) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The consolidated financtal statements have been prepared to comply in all material 
respects with the notified accounting standards by Companies Accounting Standards 
and the relevant provisions of the Companles Act, 2013, The financlal statements 
have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basls In 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In Indfa. The accounting 
policles have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with 
those used in the previous year. The accounts are prepared on accounting principles 
of a going concern. Financial Statements have also been prepared In accordance with 
the relevant presentational requirements of the Companies Act 2013, 

2} PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION: 

Name of the Entlty Country of | Share Nature of 
Incorporation | Holding % | Relationship 

Kehan Solarworld Put. Ltd. Indta 51.00% | Subsidiary Company 
Danton Power Pvt. Ltd India 51.00% | Subsidiary Company 
Ankita Agro And Food India 24.00% Associate Company 
Processing Pvt. Ltd. 

Futurelife Foods Pvt Ltd India 24.99% Assoclate Company 

a. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companles have been combined on a line-by-ine basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilitles, income & expenses, after fully ellminating intra-group balances and Intra-group transactions resulting In unrealized profits or losses as per Accounting Standard 21-‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ notifled by Companies 
(Accounting Standards)Rules, 2006. 

b. The difference between the cost of investment In the subsidiary and the Company’s share of net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiary is recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be. 

Minority interest In the net assets of consolidated subsidiary Is identifled and presented In the consolldated balance sheet separately from liabllities and equity of the Company’s shareholders. 



Minority interest In the net assets of consolidated subsidiary conslsts of: 
*The amount of equity attributable to minority at the time on which Investment in 

the subsidlary is made; and 

*The minority share of movements in equity since the date the parent subsidiary 
relationship came into existence. 

d. Minority’s share of net profit for the year of consolidated subsidiary Is identified and 
adjusted agalnst the profit after tax of the Group. 

e. The share in the Profit/loss of Associate(s) Company has been adjusted 
appropriately agalnst the value of Investments and Reserves Surplus, 

3) QOther significant accounting pollcies: 

These are set out under “Significant Accounting Policles” as glven In the Company’s 
standalone financial statements. 

Note 27: Other Notes to Accounts 

1) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: 

(a) Rs 2586.63 lakh BG Issued (Gross) by Bank on behalf of the company (Previous Year 
143.44 lakh). 

(b) Demand of Rs 220,06 lakhs ralsed by Dept of Trade & Taxes, (VAT), New Delhi in 
respect of FY 2016-17 against which company has gone Into appeal. 

2) In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances have the value at least equal to the figures stated in the Balance Sheet on realization in the ordinary course of business and provision for all determinable/known liabilities have been made. 

3) The prior perlod expenses debited to profit & loss account during the year -NIL 

Auditors Remuneration 

AMOUNT (Rs.) AMOUNT {Rs.) 
ForF.Y. 2021.22 For .Y, 2020-21 a. AsAuditor 

67,200 77,200 b. Other Matters - - 

67,200 77,200 

4)  EXPENSES IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 2021-22 2020-21 

Purchase 
49,91,685.67 2,19,51,733.94 Foreign Travel 
3,05,995,16 NIL 

Forelgn Business Development & Marketing Exp 5,86,649.49 9,63,000.00 

5) EARNING IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 2021-22 2020-21 
NiL NIL 



6) Additional Information (as 

Act,2013): 

required by Sch-lii of the Companies 

Name of Entity %of Amt. %of Amt. 
consoll consolld 
dated ated 
Net profit/ 

assets {loss) 

Parent Company 

Solarworld Energy Solutions 65.31% | 5,44,09,563.59 | 142,82% | 1,12,92,977.79 
Private Limited 

Subsidiary Company 32.52% 
Kehan Solarworld Private 32.43% | 2,70,13,708.00 - 25,71,702,00 

Limited 
Subsidlary Company 

Danton Power Private -7.54% | (62,78,206.22) | -75.34% | (59,57,517.22) 
Limited 

7) Other Notes to the Accounts 

These are set out under “Notes to the Accounts” as given in the standalone Financial 
Statements, 

8) The matters/Accounting Standards not specifically commented upon/ reported 
herein above are either not applicable and/ or not relevant, 

SIGNATURE TO NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

For Lov Bhatia & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. 00847 

{Adarsh Bhatia) 
Proprietor 

M. No.: 084384 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 24-09-2022 

Director 

DIN.05115384 
UIN: 84024384 Do) 19y R-13, Nehru Enclave 

Kalkaji, New Delht-19 

Forand on the behalf of the Board 

(Kartik ¥éitia) 
Director 

DIN.06610105 

C-31, Sector-47,Noida, 

Gautam Budh Nagar, 

Uttar Pradesh-201303 
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